
 

 
 

 

 

Brent Pension Fund Sub-Committee 
 

Tuesday 24 February 2015 at 6.00 pm 
Board Room 4 - 6 Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, 
Wembley HA9 0FJ 
 
 
Membership:  
 
Members Substitute Members 
Councillors: Councillors 
  

S Choudhary (Chair) 
Hylton 
W Mitchell Murray 
Perrin 
Shahzad 
Thomas 
Vacancy 
 

 
Connelly, Daly, Dixon, Duffy, 
Filson, Ezeajughi, Farah, Filson, 
Harrison, Hector, Hoda-Benn, 
Hossain and vacancy 
 
 

    

 
Non Voting Co-opted Members  
  
 George Fraser Employees 

Ashok Patel College of North West London 

 
For further information contact: Joe Kwateng 
0208 937 1354, joe.kwateng@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

democracy.brent.gov.uk 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend part of this 
meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda. 
 

 

     

2 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 November 2014  
 

1 - 6 

     

3 Matters arising  
 

 

     

4 Deputations (if any)  
 

 

     

5 Aviva Investors - Property  
 

 

     

6 Monitoring report on fund activity for the quarter ended 31 
December 2014  

 

7 - 24 

 This report provides a summary of the Fund’s activity during the quarter 
ended           31 December 2014 and examines the economic and market 
background, and investment performance, as well as commenting on 
events in the quarter.  
 

 

 Ward affected: All Wards Contact Officer: Conrad Hall, Chief 
Finance Officer 

 

   Tel: 020 8937 6528 
conrad.hall@brent.gov.uk 

 

     

7 Any other urgent business  
 

 

 Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to 
the Democratic Services Manager or his representative before the 
meeting in accordance with Standing Order 64. 

 



 

 

 

     

8 Exclusion of press and public  
 

 

 The following reports are not for publication as they relate to the following 
category of exempt information as specified in the Local Government Act 
1972 namely: 
 
3. Information relating to the business and financial affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding the information. 
 
 Fund Manager Review 
 Infrastructure. 
 
 

 

     

9 Quarterly review of fund managers' performance  
 

25 - 30 

 This report provides a summary of the Pension Fund’s active fund 
managers in 4Q14, and a commentary of their performance in 
comparison both to their benchmark and to reasonable expectation. 
 

 

 Ward affected: All Wards Contact Officer: Conrad Hall, Chief 
Finance Officer 

 

   Tel: 020 8937 6528 
conrad.hall@brent.gov.uk 

 

     

10 Investment in infrastructure  
 

31 - 36 

 This report provides an overview of investment in infrastructure.  
 

 

 Ward affected: All Wards Contact Officer: Conrad Hall, Chief 
Finance Officer 

 

   Tel: 020 8937 6528 
conrad.hall@brent.gov.uk 

 

     
 
 

� Please remember to set your mobile phone to silent during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT 

 
MINUTES OF THE BRENT PENSION FUND SUB-COMMITTEE 

Tuesday 18 November 2014 at 6.30 pm 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillor S Choudhary (Chair) and Councillors Hylton, Perrin, Shahzad and 
Thomas 

 
Also present: Councillors Filson and Pavey (Deputy Leader of the Council) 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: Councillors W Mitchell Murray, George Fraser 
and Ashok Patel 

 
 

1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 
Councillor Perrin advised that he was a Brent pensioner, however he did not view 
this as a prejudicial interest and remained present for the entire meeting to consider 
all items on the agenda. 
 

2. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 September 2014  
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 30 September 2014 be approved 
as an accurate record of the meeting. 
 

3. Matters arising  
 
Review of fund managers 
 
Julian Pendock (Investments and Pensions Manager, Finance and IT) clarified an 
issue raised at the last meeting in respect of stock lending, advising that fund 
managers do not disclose whether they undertake such an activity, however in 
reality it was an action that occurred in passive fund managers, also known as 
trackers.  He added that councils would jointly, through the collective investment 
vehicle, pressurise fund managers to share the proceeds which emanate from stock 
lending.  He confirmed that the council itself did not directly lend stock. 
 

4. London pension fund collaboration (collective investment vehicle)  
 
Julian Pendock introduced the report and explained that the Government had been 
suggesting for a while that local authorities should be encouraged to merge funds 
as a more effective way to obtain higher returns. However, there was no information 
to specifically suggest that there was a direct correlation between a fund’s size and 
its return.  Members heard that 30 out of 33 London boroughs, including Brent, 
were participating in a voluntary collective investment vehicle (CIV) based on a 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
Brent Pension Fund Sub-Committee - 18 November 2014 

mutual attraction. Julian Pendock informed the committee that the London Leaders 
and Society of London Treasurers had been comparing a range of options for 
closer fund pension collaboration and the preferred option was a CIV that operated 
on a voluntary basis.  He advised that the CIV was working closely with the Baillie 
Gifford Diversified Growth fund with a view to incorporating it onto the CIV.  
Members heard that the CIV was working with a number of organisations, such as 
Deloittes, in facilitating the CIV and it was recommended that the council contribute 
an additional £50,000 for the set up costs of the CIV, with one payment of £25,000 
being requested now, and the remaining £25,000 anticipated in April 2016. 
 
During members’ discussions, it was commented that some boroughs within the 
CIV may be minded to continue investing with the same organisations and 
individuals that they had known for a long while, and these relationships and 
investments would not be impacted by the CIV.  It was queried what the total level 
of investment of the CIV would be and whether it represented a material amount.  
Further information on the lower fees and improved performance that the CIV would 
generate was requested.  A member, in noting the amount that each partner 
borough was being asked to contribute towards the CIV, asked if London Councils 
was also making a contribution.  The committee also asked how the council’s 
pension fund would be managed locally. 
 
In reply to the queries raised, Julian Pendock emphasised that the CIV did not 
compel local authorities to commit to particular investments and there were also 
measures being taken to ensure transparency and the appropriate corporate 
governance arrangements.  The CIV would be open to new ideas in how to achieve 
higher returns.  Julian Pendock advised that there would be a gentle roll out in 
terms of investing in the CIV and there were some equities in particular that he 
would like to be included in its portfolio.  There was potential for some significant 
returns in the medium to longer term, particularly in private equity.  Members heard 
that the optimal structure of the CIV was being fine tuned, in consultation with the 
Financial Conduct Authority and HM Treasury.  Julian Pendock advised that it was 
difficult to estimate the approximate savings that could be made through the CIV at 
this stage, however up to 20% could be achieved overall, on the basis of initial 
indications from consultations with fund managers.  He added that presently there 
were a number of local authority pension funds that were largely similar in 
composition and the CIV would provide more time for the partner boroughs to 
consider other options. 
 
Mick Bowden (Operational Director – Finance, Finance and IT) advised that London 
Councils was made of individual London boroughs, with London Councils set up on 
behalf of the boroughs who are the active owners and this is why they made 
individual contributions to setting up the CIV.  He drew members’ attention to the 
table under section 3.4 in the report that set out the estimated savings from the CIV 
and advised that, on that basis, it would take one year to pay off the total set up 
costs per borough of £75,000.  Mick Bowden advised that membership of the CIV 
would not change the council’s ability to manage its own funds locally and who it 
wanted to invest in, however it now had the choice to invest either through the CIV 
where it would achieve better value, or on its own.   
 
 
 
 

Page 2



3 
Brent Pension Fund Sub-Committee - 18 November 2014 

RESOLVED: 
 
that the ongoing establishment of a collective investment vehicle (CIV) be 
supported and delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to approve a further 
£50,000 expenditure relating to the set up costs of the CIV, with one tranche of 
£25,000 to be paid now, and one more in April 2016. 
 

5. Monitoring report on fund activity for the quarter ended 30 September 2014  
 
Julian Pendock introduced the report and advised that although relative 
performance for the quarter represented an improvement, overall the Fund 
continued to be one of the lower performing funds in the Local Government Pension 
Schemes (LGPS) universe.  However, this could not be rectified in a short period of 
time and a thorough analysis of performance in a number of areas needed be 
undertaken before considering what changes could be made to improve returns on 
investments. 
 
Peter Davies (Independent Adviser to the Fund) then addressed the sub-committee 
to report on economies, markets and currencies.  He advised that since the report 
had been produced, equity markets had risen above the level they were at in 
September 2014, whilst bond yields had normalised. Meanwhile, sterling had 
continued to weaken compared to other currencies, whilst Brent crude oil, which fell 
16% during the quarter, had fallen by a further 9% in the first three weeks of 
October 2014, which was a positive development for some.  Members noted the 
FTSE capital returns for various markets as set out in the report.  Members heard 
that Japan had increased spending on Government bonds, however it remained in 
recession and its policy of reflating the stock market did not appear to be working.  
It was noted that the Fund had few investments in Japan and so would not be 
affected.  Peter Davies added that he expected equity markets to fall back again 
following their recent rise.   
 
Tom Wright (Baillie Gifford) was then invited to give a presentation on the Fund.  
Tom Wright informed members that Baillie Gifford had been appointed by the 
council on 20 June 2012 to manage the diversified growth fund on the council’s 
behalf and had set a target to provide a return that outperformed the UK base rate 
by at least 3.5% per annum over rolling five year periods.  A target of annualised 
volatility of less than 10% over rolling five year periods had also been set.  
Members noted the asset allocation and performance of the Fund and valuation 
from December 2008 to July 2014 and were advised that the net return of the Fund 
since 20 June 2012 was 6.9%.  Tom Wright advised that there was some 
encouraging news in respect of improvements in economic data in parts of the 
developed world, such as the United States of America and good news from 
companies also gave grounds for optimism.  However, risks remained and the end 
of quantitative easing and an increase in interest rates may hit some assets.  Tom 
Wright added that many asset classes had benefitted from an accommodative 
monetary policy and now appeared expensive and so caution should be applied. 
 
During discussion, a member enquired what the implications of the price of crude 
Brent oil going down would be.  A member noted the slight increase in bonds 
returns and commented that the returns were likely to remain similar for the next 
three months. In view of this, he stated that there appeared to be a cautious 
approach in investing and that the Fund was not likely to make much inroads 

Page 3



4 
Brent Pension Fund Sub-Committee - 18 November 2014 

compared to the performance of other funds.  He added that in view of the overall 
global economic situation, it was perhaps prudent to continue with a cautious 
approach.  He also asked whether there should be more investment in emerging 
markets such as Mexico, which had been economically reformed and was more 
stable.  A member commented that there was a comparatively large amount of 
investment in alternatives that had not performed well and he queried whether 
funds could be divested from these.  It was also asked whether the Fund was 
actively investing in China and India.   
 
In reply to the issues raised, Peter Davies advised that oil producers had not scaled 
back on supply and this had been a surprise to the market as it had been 
anticipated the supply would be reduced and so prices would continue to remain 
lower for now. 
 
Julian Pendock advised that the Henderson Total Return Bond Fund took a safety 
first approach, however the various funding strategies including tracking had not 
worked out in the way that had been anticipated.  Members heard that there was 
very active corporate governance in terms of the larger funds within the Pension 
Fund, however there would need to be consideration given to dropping the lower 
performing funds.  In respect of alternative investments, Julian Pendock advised 
that some investments were unlikely to meet their targets and members noted that 
Julian Pendock, Conrad Hall (Chief Finance Officer, Finance and IT) and Peter 
Davies had met with fund managers to hold them to account.  However, the sub-
committee heard that the funds were legally “locked up” and so could not be 
redeemed, but the council would continue to fight for fee reductions.  Julian 
Pendock advised that a cautious approach was being taken in the sense that there 
had been a distribution of risk  and the Fund was also being considered holistically.   
He added that the emerging markets mandate urgently needed to be reviewed in 
the light of both the structure and performance of the existing emerging markets 
fund manager. 
 
Tom Wright advised that in terms of investments in companies, most were western 
listed however some were based in China and India, such as Prudential and there 
was a notable proportion of the population in these countries who had sufficient 
income to set aside money for matters such as insurance and pensions and other 
financial arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
that the monitoring report on Fund activity for the quarter ended 30 September 
2014 be noted.  
 

6. Date of next meeting  
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Brent Pension Fund Sub-Committee was 
scheduled to take place on Tuesday, 24 February 2015 at 6.30 pm. 
 

7. Any other urgent business  
 
None. 
 
 

Page 4



5 
Brent Pension Fund Sub-Committee - 18 November 2014 

8. Exclusion of press and public  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as the 
reports to be considered contained the following category of exempt as specified in 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Access to Information Act 1972, namely: 
 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of particular persons 
(including the Authority holding that information). 
 

9. Diversified growth funds  
 
Julian Pendock introduced the item and stated that a number of organisations and 
institutions were in a similar situation to the council in terms of their pension funds.  
He advised that Baillie Gifford managed multi-asset funds effectively on behalf of a 
number of local authorities.  The advantage of multi-asset funds was that they 
afforded fund managers much greater tactical freedom and it was felt desirable to 
increase allocation in diversified growth funds and for these to be managed by a 
diversified growth manager.   
 
During members’ discussions, a member sought further information about how 
diversified growth funds would help the Fund and would it be prudent to remain with 
the current asset allocation to maintain consistent returns, especially as the global 
economic situation was still volatile.  He also asked what proportion of the Fund 
would come under diversified growth funds and how many other local authorities 
were looking at diversified growth funds.  
 
In reply, Julian Pendock advised that diversified growth funds was not a new 
concept and that such funding would not be a short term measure, but a sensible 
activity to undertake in view of the current global economic volatility.  It was 
intended that diversified growth funds would be in the first wave of investments to 
go into the CIV. 
 
Mick Bowden advised that it would be open to the sub-committee to determine the 
amount of funds allocated for diversified growth funds at a later date.  An 
assessment of what areas in diversified growth the Fund would benefit having 
exposure to was being undertaken and it would be for the diversified growth 
managers to decide on what to invest in. 
 
Tom Wright added that he was aware of five other London boroughs who were 
developing a diversified growth funds strategy and there were also a few others in 
the UK that were undertaking this.  These authorities were initially investing modest 
amounts in diversified growth funds, although it was anticipated the amounts would 
rise as confidence grew in their ability to achieve good returns. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(i) that the benefits to the Fund of increased investment in diversified growth 

funds be noted; and 
 

Page 5



6 
Brent Pension Fund Sub-Committee - 18 November 2014 

(ii) that the commencement of the selection process for diversified growth 
managers be approved. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 7.45 pm 
 
 
 
S CHOUDHARY 
Chair 
 

Page 6



 

 

Pension Fund Sub-Committee 
 

24 February 2015 

Report from the Chief Finance Officer  

For Information  Wards Affected: 
ALL 

Quarterly monitoring report on fund activity 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a summary of the Fund’s activity during the quarter ended           

31 December 2014. It examines the economic and market background, and 
investment performance, as well as commenting on events in the quarter. The 
main points arising are: 

a) The Fund has increased in value by 2.4% from £609.0m to £623.8m during 
the quarter ended 31 December 2014. The Fund’s investment return of 
2.1% under-performed its quarterly benchmark of 2.3%. During the quarter, 
Sterling fell by 3.9% against the US dollar. This change in currencies must 
be taken into consideration given the sizable non-Sterling holdings in the 
fund, which are not hedged against movements in sterling. 

b) The single-largest contributor to this positive return during the quarter was 
again Global Equities (ie. excluding the UK). The quarter proved to be 
turbulent another turbulent quarter for equity markets. 

c) The main disappointment was the Total Return Bond Fund, which lost 
money against the backdrop of a record-setting bull market in bonds.  

d) The Global Emerging Markets equity fund also lost 2.7%, more than the 
0.7% market drop, hurt by their exposure to cyclical sectors which appeared 
to be cheap but which have been value traps, so far.   

e) Stripping out the translation effect of a weaker Sterling, only Alinda Partners 
beat their benchmark in 4Q14. 

f) The 12-month return as at 30 December 2014 was 6.8%, marginally lower 
than the benchmark return of 7.2%. 

g) The Fund return for the 3 years ended 30 December 2014 is an annualised 
9.5% p.a., which again lags the benchmarked return of 9.9%. 

  

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



h) The investment performance of the Brent Pension Fund in comparison to its 
benchmark for the period ended 30 December 2014 is shown below: 
 
 

 
  

Total Fund 
Return 

 

Fund 
Benchmark 

Return 
 

Local 
Authority 
Average 

1 year 6.8 % 7.2% N/A 

3 years 9.5% 9.9% N/A 

5 years 7.2% 7.6% N/A 

    

 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Members are asked to note the investment report. 

 
3. DETAIL 
 
 Economic and market background – quarter ended 31 December 2014 
 
3.1 The market pressures which had been building through 2014 finally surfaced in 

4Q14, with the collapse in the oil price, which took down the Russian ruble as 
well as other emerging market currencies. The key reason behind this was a 
global debt and currency mismatch. Unsustainable prices and pressures had 
been masked by Central Banks’ policies; the events of 4Q14 refocused markets 
on the hitherto remote possibility that Central Bankers are fallible. This fear was 
reinforced by the dramatic revaluation of the Swiss Franc, after the Swiss 
National Bank relented to market pressure, and gave up its attempts to peg the 
Franc to the euro. 

 
3.2 During the quarter ended 31 December 2014, the UK’s FTSE 100 fell by 0.8%., 

negatively affected by the heavy weight of oil and commodities in the index. As 
the quarter proceeded, it was increasingly clear that the domestic economy’s 
growth was slowing, as export markets slowed and the housing market cooled.   

 
3.3 In the US, the strong USD weighed on international earnings. Earnings continued 

to benefit from lower energy prices (shale, international demand shortfall and an 
supply glut in oil). Jobs “onshoring” is likely to prove a continued boost. Economic 
headlines continued to paint a healthier economic picture than was supported by 
the underlying detail. 

 
3.4 The collapse in energy prices had a dramatic (if predictable) effect on inflation 

expectations. This, combined with low levels of aggregate demand was enough 
to tip the eurozone into deflation, thereby increasing expectations of QE in the 
eurozone. It was therefore no surprise that government bonds and investment 
grade credit performed well. In Europe, long duration, high quality bonds 

Page 8



recorded a negative yield, symptomatic of a world that was awash with liquidity, 
but lacked inflation, demand and confidence. Three European Central Banks 
implemented a negative overnight deposit rate. 

 
3.5 Data from the Eurozone went from mixed to poor, but negative news was again 

largely viewed as a reason for further unconventional policy measures by the 
ECB, and therefore “bad” news did not dent trading sentiment. Share price gains 
were largely negated by the weakening euro. 

 
3.6 Emerging markets had another tough quarter. The asset class is traditionally 

viewed as a geared play on global monetary conditions. Many emerging markets 
were impacted by the well-flagged problem of bourses’ and currencies’ sensitivity 
to US dollar strength. Russia’s plight was the most dramatic manifestation of this.  

 
3.7 A market review for the quarter ended 31 December 2014, written by the 

Independent Financial Adviser, is attached. 
 
 
Investment performance of the Fund 
  
3.8 The investment performance of the Brent Pension Fund in comparison to the WM 

Local Authority percentile average for all Local Government Pension Schemes 
(LGPS) funds nationally is shown below: 

 
 Period ended 

30 Sept 2014 
Period ended 
30 Dec 14 

 
1 year 63rd   80th  

3 years 95th  87th   

5 years 97th   97th  

10 years 100th  100th  

 
3.9 The comparative statistics show that the Fund has been one of the lower 

performing LGPS funds for a period of many years. 
 
3.10 The Fund has under-performed over the past few years, largely due to its lower 

weighting in equities (49% of the fund, compared to the Local Authority average 
of 63%). As equity markets have become less buoyant, this has become less of a 
reason for under-performance. 

 
3.11 The main reason for poor performance in 2014 was the low return of the Total 

Return Bond Fund. The 16% fund weighting is material and the short duration of 
the portfolio meant that this holding largely missed out on record government 
bond price gains.  

 
3.12 The large weighting in the Private Equity Fund of Funds has been a contributor to 

the fund’s underperformance in recent years. In 2014, these assets benefited 
from currency movements and performed in line with expectations. 

 

Page 9



3.13 Table 1 shows the changes in asset allocation, how asset allocation compares 
with the benchmark and with the average fund (WM Local Authority average), 
and how the change in the market value during the quarter is allocated across 
asset classes. Items marked (*) in columns 4 and 8 cannot be separately 
analysed, but are included within the relevant asset class. 

 
Table 1: Asset allocation as at 31 December 2014 compared to the benchmark  
 

 
 
 

Assets 
(1) 

Market 
Value 
30/9/14 
£M 
(2) 

Market 
Value 
30/9/14 
% 
(3) 

WM LA 
Average 
31/12/14 

% 
(4) 

Fund 
Benchmark 
31/12/14 

% 
(5) 

Market 
Value 
31/12/14 
£M 
(6) 

Market 
Value 
31/12/14 

% 
(7) 

         

Fixed Income        
Henderson – Total 
Return Bond Fund 

85.5 14.1 16.9 15.0 84.2 13.5 

        

Equities       

UK – Legal & General 86.3 14.2 26.4 15.0 86.7 13.9 
UK - Smaller 
Companies Fund 
Henderson 

26.1 4.6 * 4.0 25.8 4.1 

O/seas – developed 
Legal & General  

144.0 23.7 32.9 24.0 151.7 24.3 

O/seas – emerging 
Dimensional 

40.1 6.6 5.4 8.0 38.9 6.2 

        

Property       

Aviva 36.0 5.9 7.9 8.0 36.7 5.9 
        

Private Equity       

Capital Dynamics 78.3 12.8 3.9 10.0 82.6 13.2 

Yorkshire Fund 1.1 0.2 *  1.1 0.2 
        

        

Infrastructure       

Alinda 23.8 3.9 1.8 6.0 27.0 4.3 

Capital Dynamics 15.6 2.6 *  9.4 1.5 

Henderson PFI Fund II 1.3 0.2 *  1.3 0.2 
        

Pooled Multi Asset       

Baillie Gifford DGF 46.8 7.7 1.9 8.0 67.1 10.7 
        

Cash 23.8 3.9 2.9 2.0 12.2 2.0 

        

Total 607.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 623.8 100.0 

 
3.14 The independent WM Company measures the returns on the Brent Pension 
 Fund. Table 2 sets out returns for the periods to 31 December 2014. 
 

Page 10



 
Table 2:   Investment Returns in Individual Markets  

 

Investment Category 

RETURNS 

Benchmark/ 
Index Description 

Quarter Ending 31/12/14 Year Ended 31/12/14 

Fund 
% 

Benchmark 
% 

WM 
Local 
Auth 
% 

Fund 
% 

Benchmark 
% 

WM 
Local 
Auth 
% 

        
Fixed Income        

Total Return Bond Fund 
Henderson 

-1.4 1.5 -0.2    1.2       6.0 4.8 Absolute return 6% p.a. 

        
Equities        

UK – Legal & General 0.6 0.6 0.9 1.3 1.2 0.8 FTSE All Share 
UK - Small Companies 
Henderson 

-1.2 -0.9 
 

* -0.0 2.7 * FTSE Small Cap 

O/seas – developed 
Legal & General 

5.4 5.4 3.7 12.7 12.7 9.2 FTSE Dev World ex UK 

O/seas – emerging 
Dimensional 

-2.7 -0.7 0.2 1.4 3.9 8.7 MSCI Emerging Markets 

        
Property        

Aviva 3.1 4.6 * 10.3 17.2 * IPD All Properties Index 
        
Private Equity        

Capital Dynamics 1.9 1.9 * 6.7 8.0 * Absolute return 8% p.a. 
Yorkshire Fund Managers * * * * *  Absolute return 8% p.a. 
        
Infrastructure        

Alinda 10.8 1.9 * 25.0 8.0 * Absolute return 8% p.a. 
        
Pooled Multi Asset                     
Baillie Gifford DGF 0.8 1.0 *   6.0        4.0 * Base Rate + 3.5% p.a. 
        

Cash 0.1 0.1 *   0.1        0.5 * Base Rate 
        
Total 2.1 2.3 3.1   6.8      7.2 8.1  

        

        

 
3.15 The Fund’s return of 2.1% under-performed its benchmark of 2.3% in 4Q14, and 

returned 6.8%, compared to its benchmark of 7.2%.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Compliance with statutory investment limits 
 

Page 11



3.17    LGPS investment regulations state that the Administering Authority shall have 
regard both to the diversification and the suitability of investments. The following 
table demonstrates full compliance when comparing the Fund’s actual 
investment exposure with the statutory limits under regulation: 
 
Investment Statutory 

limit 
under 

regulation 

Actual 
exposure at 
31 Dec 2014 

Compliant 
Yes / No 

Any single holding 10% 3% Yes 
Unit trusts managed by any one body 35% 24% Yes 
Lending to any one borrower 10% Nil Yes 
Unlisted securities of companies 15% Nil Yes 
Any single partnership 5% 3% Yes 
Total investment in partnerships 30% 19% Yes 

 
 

Outstanding contractual commitments 
 
3.18    The Brent Pension Fund has not entered into any new investments in private 

equity/infrastructure since November 2011 and whilst significant capital call 
payments have been made over the past two years, the outstanding contractual 
commitments on existing investments continue to remain significant as follows: 

 
 31 March 2013 30 Sept 2014 31 Dec 2014 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 
  
Capital Dynamics 54,077 30,404 28,524 
Alinda 10,636 3,231 2,564 
Yorkshire Fund Managers 266 0 0 
  

Total 64,979 33,632 31,088 
 
3.19    These outstanding investment commitments mean that the Fund needs to retain 

a sizeable cash balance to meet capital call payments as they arise. It also 
prevents the Fund from moving to its strategic allocations in Property and limits 
the extent to which any new investments can be considered at the present time. 

 
4. ESTABLISHMENT OF PENSION BOARDS 
 
4.1 Brent Council is required by statutory regulations to establish a Pensions Board. 

The decision to form Pensions Boards came out of The Independent Public 
Service Pensions Commission. 

 
4.2 The Board will be advisory only, and will not alter the role of the Council’s 

Pension Fund Sub-Committee.  
 

4.2 The Board’s mandated role is to provide a scrutiny function of the work of the 
Sub-Committee, with regards to compliance with regulations, compliance with 
legislation (existing and new), and to oversee the governance and administration 
of the Pension Fund. 

 

Page 12



4.3 The Pensions Board is required to be established by 1st April 2015 and be 
operational by 30th July 2015. The Board will have an equal number of employer 
and scheme member representatives and an independent chair. The Board will 
meet at least twice a year, and will be funded by the Pension Fund. The General 
Purposes Committee will determine the arrangements for the establish of the 
Pensions Board at its meeting on 25 February 2015. 

 
5. UPDATE ON LONDON COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE (CIV) 
 
5.1 Some 30 of London’s 33 Authorities have signed up to the CIV. Much of the 

infrastructure has been put into place; in December 2014, an Asset Service 
Provider (Northern Trust) was appointed. Much of the work carried out by London 
Councils and the Technical Sub Group (TSG) is now focused on preparing the 
application to the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). 

 
5.2 The initial deadline of May 2015 has slipped, due to the plethora of complex 

technical and legal issues. The aim is to launch in summer 2015. The FCA 
application is the key swing factor in terms of precise timing. 

 
5.3 Negotiations with fund managers are ongoing. It is envisioned that at the time of 

launch, passive managers will be included, with select active equity and bond 
managers (there is considerably less overlap of active bond managers within 
London than there is with active equity managers). The main cost savings will be 
in the alternatives space, and these will take the longest period of time to develop 
for the CIV. 

 
5.4 It remains unclear what the final outcome of the latest Government Consultation 

over LGPS reform will be, given the national political cycle. If successful, the CIV 
will address many of the issues raised during the Consultations process.  

 
 
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 These are included within the report. 
 
7. DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 None. 
 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None. 
 
10. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
10.1 Henderson Investors – September 2014 quarter report 
 Legal & General – September 2014 quarter report 
 Dimensional Asset Management – September 2014 quarter report 

Page 13



 Baillie Gifford – September 2014 quarter report 
 

11. CONTACT OFFICERS 
 

11.1 Persons wishing to discuss the above should contact the Investment and 
Pensions Section, on 020 8937 1472 at Brent Civic Centre. 

 
 
 

 
CONRAD HALL 
Chief Finance Officer 

JULIAN PENDOCK 
Investment and Pensions Manager 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 14



 
 
 

 
QUARTERLY REVIEW PREPARED FOR 

 
Brent Council Pension Fund 

 
Q4 2014 

 
20 January 2015 

 
 
 

 
Peter Davies 
AllenbridgeEpic Investment Advisers Limited (AllenbridgeEpic) 

 
peter.davies@allenbridgeepic.com                               www.allenbridgeepic.com   
 
This document is directed only at the person(s) identified above on the basis of our 
investment advisory agreement with you. No liability is admitted to any other user of 
this report and if you are not the named recipient you should not seek to rely upon it. It 
is issued by AllenbridgeEpic Investment Advisers Limited, an appointed representative 
of Allenbridge Capital Limited which is Authorised and Regulated by the Financial 
Conduct Authority. 
 
We understand that your preference is for your adviser to issue investment advice in 
the first person. We recognise that this preference is a matter of style only and is not 
intended to alter the fact that investment advice will be given by AllenbridgeEpic 
Investment Advisers Limited, an authorised person under FSMA as required by the 
Pensions Act. 
 
AllenbridgeEpic Investment Advisers Limited is a subsidiary of Allenbridge Investment 
Solutions LLP. 
 
  

Page 15



BRE�T COU�CIL PE�SIO� FU�D 
Quarterly Review, October – December 2014 

Economy 
1.  The US economy showed strong growth of +1.2% in the third quarter, while the UK’s 

0.7% gain was partly offset by downward revisions to earlier quarters. The Eurozone 
economies remained sluggish, while Japan contracted for a second successive quarter 
and China’s growth rate looked likely to slow down. The fall in oil prices reduced rates 
of inflation globally, but whereas the annual UK core rate (excluding energy, food and 
alcohol) was +1.3%, the negative inflation in the Eurozone was symptomatic of weak 
demand in the region. 

 
(In the table below, bracketed figures show the forecasts at the time of the previous 
Quarterly Review in October) 

[Source of estimates: The Economist, January 10th, 2015] 

2. In his Autumn Statement on December 3rd, George Osborne forecast UK GDP growth 
of 3.0% in 2014, but the estimates for the following five years were slightly lower than 
previously forecast, and all below 2.5%. CPI inflation is expected to remain in the 1-2% 
range throughout 2015 and 2016. The fiscal deficit in the 2014/15 tax year is expected 
to be £91.3bn (5% of GDP, and some £5bn larger than previously forecast) and to fall 
each year until a surplus of £4bn is achieved in 2018/19. The Debt/GDP ratio was 
forecast to peak at 81% in 2015/16. Notable changes announced in the Statement 
included an immediate revamp of Stamp Duty rates, and restrictions on the banks’ 
ability to offset past losses against future tax. 
 

3. The coalition’s planned reduction in the fiscal deficit is predicated on cutting public 
spending by 1% of GDP each year, while increasing tax receipts by 0.1% of GDP each 
year. The Labour Party criticised the scale of these spending cuts, and indicated that, if 
elected, they would cut spending by only 0.6% of GDP per annum. This difference in 
approach looks likely to be one of the main themes of the forthcoming General Election 
campaign. 

Consensus real 
growth (%) 

    Consumer prices 
latest 
(%) 

 2012 2013 2014E 2015E  

UK -0.1 +1.7  +2.9 (+3.1) +2.7 +0.5 (CPI) 

USA +2.2 +1.9 +2.3 (+2.2) +3.1 +1.3 

Eurozone -0.5 -0.4  +0.8 (+0.8) +1.1 -0.2 

Japan +1.9 +1.7  +0.3 (+1.0) +1.0 +2.4 

China  +7.8 +7.7  +7.3 (+7.3) +7.0 +1.4 

Page 16



 
4. Towards the end of October, the US Federal Reserve confirmed that it would end its 

purchases of bonds under the Quantitative Easing programme. Only a day later, the 
Bank of Japan announced it would step up its QE operation, with the aim of increasing 
Japan’s monetary base to Y80 trn (compared with the previous target of 60-70trn), 
primarily by purchasing Japan Government Bonds. In mid-November, Japan’s GDP for 
the second quarter was announced to be – 0.4%, thereby confirming a recession, and 
shortly afterwards Prime Minister Abe announced he would defer the second stage of 
the consumption tax increase from October 2015 to April 2017. He also called a snap 
election for December 14th, which, in the face of opposition disarray, confirmed the 
LDP’s standing in the Diet. 
 

5. The most dramatic – and unexpected – development has been the steep fall in the price 
of oil. A barrel of Brent Crude halved in price (from $112 to $57) during the second 
half of 2014, and has fallen to below $50 in the first two weeks of January. The causes 
have been a mix of slowing demand and inflexible supply. Within the OPEC group, the 
low-cost producers (Saudi Arabia, Kuwait, Qatar and UAE) have decided to maintain 
their production levels, knowing that this will force the price of oil downwards. Their 
motivation may be to make life difficult for the shale oil producers of North America, 
whose profitability – and in some cases viability – is severely affected by such a sharp 
reduction in market prices. While cheaper fuel is beneficial for private and industrial 
consumers, it is deeply negative for countries relying on oil exports, notably Russia, 
Nigeria and Venezuela. 
 

6. The plunging oil price dealt a further blow to the Russian economy, already weakened 
by the imposition of trade sanctions earlier in the year. After raising interest rates from 
9.5% to 10.5% on December 11, ostensibly to combat inflation, the Russian Central 
Bank suddenly increased the rate to 17% at midnight on December 15, in an attempt to 
defend the rouble which had fallen to R66 per $. The following day the rate fell further - 
to 77 per $ - before rebounding to the 55 level on heavy buying from the Russian 
Central Bank. By mid-January the rouble was trading at 65 per $. 
 

7. The political situation in Greece has reawakened concerns about the future of the 
Eurozone. On December 29th the Greek parliament failed to elect a president, forcing an 
early election which is set for January 25th. This could bring in a new government of the 
far-left populist party Syriza, led by Alexis Tsipras. He has advocated revoking most of 
the conditions attached to Greece’s bail-out: he would end austerity, scrap asset sales 
and seek to repudiate much of Greece’s debt. This agenda would be inconsistent with 
Greece’s continuing membership of the Euro, and investors have reacted to this 
prospect with heavy selling of Greek shares and government bonds. 
 

8. On January 15th the Swiss National Bank surprised markets with the news that it was 
abandoning the currency cap against the Euro, which had prevented the Swiss Franc 
appreciating beyond SFr1.20 per € since 2011. A massive surge in the Swiss Franc took 
it to 0.85 /€, before it closed the day at 1.04/€ and strengthened to 0.98/€ on Jan 16th. 

Page 17



Deprived of support from the SNB, the Euro weakened to $1.15 – its lowest level for 
eleven years. In two days the £ moved from SFr 1.55 to just SFr 1.29. 

 
Markets 
9. The movements of equity market indices for the quarter as a whole conceal a volatile 

period, where prices fell by some 10% in the month to mid-October (as described in my 
previous report), before recovering, and then underwent a smaller correction in early 
December. UK, European and Emerging Markets lagged the other regions, while almost 
the entire gain in the All-World Index was attributable to North America’s rise. 
 

 Capital return (in £, %) to 31.12.14   

Weight % Region 3 months 12 months 

100.0 FTSE All-World Index +4.0 +8.5 

54.9 FTSE All-World North America +7.7 +17.1 

7.8 FTSE All-World Japan +1.5 +0.7 

11.6 FTSE All-World Asia Pacific ex Japan +2.7 +6.6 

15.6 FTSE All-World Europe (ex-UK) -1.7 -4.4 

7.2 FTSE All-World UK -0.8 -2.9 

8.9 FTSE All-World Emerging Markets +0.0 +4.7 

 [Source: FTSE All-World Review, December 2014] 
 
 

10.  Within the UK equity market, only the ‘mid-cap’ FTSE 250 Index gained ground 
during the quarter or, indeed, during the year as a whole. 
 

(Capital only %, to 31.12.14) 3 months 12 months 

FTSE 100 - 0.9 -2.7 

FTSE 250 +4.6 +0.9 

FTSE Small Cap -0.3 -1.5 

FTSE All-Share +0.0 -2.1 

 
[Source: Financial Times] 

11.  By sector, Oil & Gas and Basic Materials were dragged down by the falling prices   of 
oil and commodities, while all the other sectors (with the exception of 
Telecommunications) registered solid gains during the quarter. 
 

Capital return (in £, %) to 31.12.14   

Page 18



Industry Group 3 months 12 months 

          Health Care +6.7 +24.1 

          Technology +6.9 +23.4 

          Utilities +5.7 +15.9 

          Consumer Services +10.7 +11.9 

        FTSE All-World +4.0 +8.5 

          Financials +5.6 +8.2 

          Consumer Goods +6.4 +7.2 

          Industrials +4.7 +5.8 

          Telecommunications -0.1 +0.8 

           Basic Materials -3.3 -5.3 

          Oil & Gas -12.8 -10.9 

 [Source: FTSE All-World Review, December 2014] 
 

12.  Government bond markets in the ‘safe haven’ economies continued to strengthen, and 
yields have fallen substantially during 2014 in all these markets as shown in the table 
below. As investors began to worry about the outlook for Greek bonds (see para 7) and 
possibly other peripherals, the security of German, UK or US government bonds 
became increasingly attractive. Lower inflation has also contributed to the demand for 
fixed-coupon bonds by increasing the real yields. 
 

10-year government 
bond yields (%)  

     

 Dec 11 Dec 12 Dec 2013 Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

US 1.88 1.76 3.03 2.49 2.17 

UK 1.98 1.85 3.04 2.43 1.76 

Germany 1.83 1.32 1.94 0.95 0.54 

Japan 0.98 0.79 0.74 0.53 0.33 

 [Source: Financial Times] 
 

13.  In the UK, yields continued to reduce at all durations, as shown below. 

Page 19



0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50

Y
ie
ld
 (%
)

Maturity (years)

UK Yield Curve

30/09/2014

31/12/2014

 
Currencies 
 

14.  The yen fell after the Bank of Japan embarked on its enhanced QE policy, while the 
pound fell against the dollar (see graph below) as it became clear that the first UK 
interest rate rise would be delayed until at least the final quarter of 2015. 
 
 

                £ move 
   31.12.13 30.09.14      31.12.14            3m   12m 
 
   $ per £ 1.656    1.621  1.559   - 3.8%            - 5.9% 
 
 € per £ 1.202     1.283  1.289   + 0.5% + 7.2% 
  
 Y per £ 174.1     177.8  186.9   + 5.1% + 7.4% 
 
 

Page 20



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14

GBP vs USD

 
 
 
 
Commodities 
 
15.  The sharp fall in oil prices has been described in para 5, but the price of copper also 

weakened on the expectation of lower demand from China. 
 

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14

Oil

 
 
 

Page 21



6000

6500

7000

7500

8000

8500

9000

Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14

Copper

 
 
 

Property 
16.  The UK property market has maintained its strong momentum of the past eighteen 

months, with returns, as measured by the IPD Monthly Index, especially strong in the 
Office and Industrial sectors. 
 

                        3-months             12-months 
 

All Property    + 4.4% + 19.3% 
 

Retail               + 2.8% + 14.1% 
Office               + 5.6% + 24.3% 
Industrial        + 6.0% + 24.4% 

 
[IPD Monthly Index of total returns, to end-Dec 2014] 

Outlook 
17.  The sharp fall in the oil price should be of benefit to consumers, by boosting their 

spendable income, and to those companies whose input costs are significantly related to 
the price of oil. Clearly there are other companies (e.g those reliant on oil exploration) 
who are suffering from the new regime, and will continue to do so while the price 
remains depressed. Oil-exporting countries are also under pressure, and several 
Emerging Markets fall into this category, just as oil-importing countries are 
beneficiaries. Overall, the boost to consumer spending should be positive for global 
economic growth in 2015. 
 

18.  In the Eurozone, all eyes are on the European Central Bank, which is expected to 
introduce Quantitative Easing now that the German court has declared it permissible. Of 

Page 22



greater immediate impact may be the outcome of the Greek election; if Syriza is 
successful, there could be a standoff with the European authorities on the continuation 
of austerity in Greece. Other peripheral European states will be watching this situation 
closely.  

 
19.  While the lower level of inflation makes lower bond yields more sustainable, and in 

turn emphasises the attractions of equity yields, there are also many reasons to remain 
cautious on the outlook for equities during 2015. 

 
 

Peter Davies 
Senior Adviser – AllenbridgeEpic Investment Advisers 
 
January 20th, 2015 
 
[All graphs supplied by Legal & General Investment Management] 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 November 2014
	6 Monitoring report on fund activity for the quarter ended 31 December 2014
	9 Quarterly review of fund managers' performance
	10 Investment in infrastructure

